
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 13th March, 2019

6.30 pm

Public Document Pack



Scrutiny Committee DATE - 13-03-19 Page 2 of 3

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
BURNLEY TOWN HALL

Wednesday, 13th March, 2019 at 6.30 
pm

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Members are reminded that if they have detailed questions on individual 
reports, they are advised to contact the report authors in advance of the 
meeting.

Members of the public may ask a question, make a statement, or present a 
petition relating to any agenda item or any matter falling within the remit of the 
committee.

Notice in writing of the subject matter must be given to the Head of Legal & 
Democracy by 5.00pm on the day before the meeting.  .  Forms can be 
obtained for this purpose from the reception desk at Burnley Town Hall, 
Manchester Road or at the Contact Centre, Parker Lane, Burnley or from the 
web at: 
http://burnley.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13234 . You 
can also register to speak via the online agenda.  Requests will be dealt with in 
the order in which they are received.

AGENDA

1) Apologies 
To receive any apologies for absence.

2) Minutes 5 - 10
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting. 

3) Additional Items of Business 
To determine whether there are any additional items of business which, 
by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4) Declarations of Interest 
To receive any declarations of interest from Members relating to any item 
on the agenda, in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Conduct 
and/or indicate if S106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
applies to them.

5) Exclusion of the Public 

http://burnley.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13234


Scrutiny Committee DATE - 13-03-19 Page 3 of 3

To determine during which items, if any, the public are to be excluded 
from the meeting.

6) Public Question Time 
To consider questions, statements or petitions from Members of the 
Public.

PUBLIC ITEMS

7) Notice of Key Decisions and Private Meetings 11 - 14
To consider the Key Decisions due to be taken in March 2019.

8) Recycling Collections 15 - 18
To respond to the public petition that has been received, which requests 
that the Council considers the introduction of a change to bins for the 
collection of recyclate.

9) State of the Local Economy 19 - 26
To consider an update on the state of the local economy and business 
support activity in the borough.

10)Scrutiny Review Groups 27 - 34
To receive an update on the work of any active Scrutiny Review Groups.

11)Work Programme 2019/20 35 - 36
To consider a draft work programme for the 2019/20 Municipal Year.

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEE 

Councillor Andrew Tatchell (Chair)
Councillor Margaret Brindle (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tom Commis
Councillor Ivor Emo
Councillor Dale Ferrier
Councillor Danny Fleming
Councillor Beatrice Foster
Councillor Joanne Greenwood

Councillor Marcus Johnstone
Councillor Lubna Khan
Councillor Shbana Khan
Councillor Gordon Lishman
Councillor Margaret Lishman
Councillor Sobia Malik
Councillor Tony Martin
Councillor Paul Reynolds

PUBLISHED Tuesday, 5 March 2019



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Committee 07/02/2019 Page 1 of 5

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
BURNLEY TOWN HALL

Thursday, 7th February, 2019 at 6.30 pm

PRESENT 

MEMBERS
Councillors A Tatchell (Chair), M Brindle (Vice-Chair), T Commis, I Emo, 
D Ferrier, D Fleming, B Foster, J Greenwood, M Johnstone, L Khan, S Khan, 
G Lishman, M Lishman, S Malik, T Martin, P Reynolds and C White

OFFICERS
Lukman Patel  Chief Operating Officer
Asad Mushtaq  Head of Finance and Property
Alison McEwan  Democracy Officer
Rob Dobson  Head of  Policy and Engagement
Simon Peet  Finance Manager
Richard Brown  Community Safety Project Officer

IN ATTENDANCE
Councillors L Pate and M Townsend

38. Apologies 

Apologies were received from Councillors Foster and Malik.

39. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 10th December 2018 were approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chair.

40. Notice of Key Decisions and Private Meetings 

IT WAS AGREED

That the Notice of Key Decisions and Private Meetings be noted.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Scrutiny Committee 07/02/2019 Page 2 of 5

41. Community Safety Annual Report 

Richard Brown introduced the Annual Community Safety update report.  He added that the 
Community Safety Partnership had just been informed that a funding bid to deliver 
awareness raising sessions about ‘County Lines’ issues in Burnley schools.

Members asked the following questions:

 Would the funding to deliver initiatives re County Lines link with other organisations, 
including care leavers, which is a significant and vulnerable group in East 
Lancashire?  Yes, the intervention will focus on vulnerable groups, with links 
established via the LCC Child and Family Wellbeing Service.  There may be the 
opportunity to obtain further funding to widen the scope.  Referrals for those leaving 
care are sometimes received into the Transforming Lives scheme.

 Burglary is listed as a priority for the Community Safety Partnership – often the 
reasons behind acquisitive crime are drug related.  There are many initiatives in 
place through partnership working.  For example Transforming Lives scheme, and 
work with Inspire substance misuse service.

 The formation of the Community Alcohol Partnership was welcomed.  Members were 
concerned by the ‘hidden’ problem drinking related to older people.  Alongside 
emergency services and medical professionals, referrals were received into the 
Transforming Lives programme – a multi-agency approach to alcohol, drug and 
mental health issues.

 Problems related to spice and ‘legal highs’.  Ongoing work continues to identify 
emerging threats and trends, and also to identify the source of drugs.

 Issues around homelessness and sleeping rough that are often linked to drug and 
alcohol issues.  A coordinated approach with Police, Housing colleagues and drug 
and alcohol agencies to provide advice and guidance to rough sleepers.  Also a new 
webpage (https://www.burnley.gov.uk/winterhelp) launched on the Council’s website 
to provide advice for members of the public on how they can help/signpost to 
appropriate services.

 Any initiatives re dependency on prescribed drugs?  This would usually be a 
CCG/GP issue.  However, individuals could be referred into the Transforming Lives 
scheme for assistance.  

IT WAS AGREED

That the report be noted.

42. Half Yearly Performance report 

In introducing the half year performance report, Rob Dobson added some information from 
the Quarter 3 data which had recently been received.  

The latest data showed that 88% of calls were answered on time, against the contact centre 
gold standard of 80%.  This was due to staff receiving additional training, allowing them to 

Page 6

https://www.burnley.gov.uk/winterhelp


Scrutiny Committee 07/02/2019 Page 3 of 5

deal with a broader range of calls.  Also calls can be cross answered by the Burnley and 
Pendle teams, to deal with peaks and troughs in demand.

Performance in the Development Control team has been strong in recent quarters.  The 
latest Q3 data does show a dip in performance regards timely processing of ‘other’ 
applications; both major and minor applications continue to be processed on time.  had 
shown a dip in Q3.  Planning staff are implementing a new computer system and there had 
also been staff vacancies, as well as some significant major applications to deal with.  The 
dip is expected to be temporary.

Members considered the following:

 Where targets were consistently (over)achieved, would there be any merit in 
stretching the targets, or could we create our own performance measures?  The 
targets were in most cases set according to national benchmarks or historical 
performance. If the council changed the measures, it would be unable to compare its 
performance against other authorities.

 That the authority should be congratulated on its reduction in sickness absence 
amongst staff, and also for being awarded the IIP Gold award against more stringent 
targets.

 Within the 88% of calls answered on target, was there a measure to show how many 
of these calls were resolved, rather than being passed around or left unresolved?  
This data is not collected, but the number of calls abandoned by frustrated 
customers is currently very low – only 1%.

  Whether there was any information on queries answered by email?  The council has 
been trying to discourage contact by email, instead trying to direct traffic through the 
forms on the website which direct comments, queries and complaints direct to the 
correct team.  This improves the accuracy of information held.  The target for 
complaints received through the web form is for acknowledgement within 5 working 
days and resolution within 20 working days.  Rob Dobson will forward the information 
to members.

43. Draft Strategic Plan 

In presenting the report, Rob Dobson informed Members that there had not been a great 
deal of change to the Strategic Plan, but that the ambition to become a University Town had 
been reflected in the document.

Members considered the following:

 Current and potential future budgetary and funding pressures and whether there 
should be more reference to these in the Strategic Plan.  Lukman Patel commented 
that the Strategic Plan was an overarching document, and should be considered 
alongside the Council’s financial planning documents such as the Strategic Risk 
Register and the Medium Term Financial Strategy which take account of financial 
challenges.   

IT WAS AGREED 

That the report be noted.

Page 7



Scrutiny Committee 07/02/2019 Page 4 of 5

44. Revenue Budget Monitoring Quarter 3 

Asad Mushtaq presented the report which showed that the Council’s revenue expenditure 
was on target as at 31st December 2018.

IT WAS AGREED

That the report be noted.

45. Capital Budget Monitoring Quarter 3 

Asad Mushtaq presented a report outlining the most recent capital budget position.

Cllr Margaret Lishman commented that there had previously been a separate Budget 
Scrutiny Panel, and that in combining the committees Budget Scrutiny did not get the focus 
it deserved.

IT WAS AGREED

That the report be noted.

46. Revenue Budget 2019/20 

Asad Mushtaq presented the report setting out the Council’s proposed budget for 2019/20.

Members considered the following:

 There was little public understanding of how local authority budgets were 
constructed and funded.  Could the Council’s Communications Team do some work 
to increase awareness. 

IT WAS AGREED

That the report be noted.

47. Medium Term Financial Strategy 

Asad Mushtaq presented the Council’s medium Term Financial Strategy, and drew 
Members attention to the extended timescale of the report – now covering 5 years.

IT WAS AGREED

That the report be noted.

Page 8



Scrutiny Committee 07/02/2019 Page 5 of 5

48. Capital Budget 2019/20 and Capital Investment Programme 2019/20 - 2023/24 

Asad Mushtaq presented the report outlining the Council’s proposed Capital Budget for 
2019/20, and Capital Investment Programme to 2023/24.

IT WAS AGREED

That the report be noted.

49. Treasury Management Strategy & Prudential Borrowing 

Asad Mushtaq introduced the report setting out how the Council will manage its 
investments and loans.

IT WAS AGREED

That the report be noted.

50. Scrutiny Review Groups 

The Chair presented a draft report from the Dementia Scrutiny Review Group.  The 
Committee endorsed the report for submission to the Executive.

Going forward the Chair outlined plans to revisit the Manchester Road Railway Station 
Scrutiny Review to measure progress made.

A suggestion for a future review group was made.  It was suggested that a review group 
could map provision of services that offered assistance to those in need in the borough, and 
how those services could be accessed.  This could inform some awareness raising work 
around services available.  

51. Work Programme 2018/19 

Alison McEwan explained that the Work Plan was there to inform Members of items due to 
come to the Committee, and was added to as the year went on.  At the next meeting the 
Committee would consider the outline Work Plan for 2019/20.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

BURNLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL  

NOTICE OF KEY DECISIONS AND PRIVATE MEETINGS 

This Notice contains: 

a)    A list of Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive (unless otherwise stated) during the months March to June 2019, published by  19th 

February 2019.  

b)    Details of dates of meetings of the Executive during the same period at which decisions may be taken in private or partly in private 

A Key Decision is an Executive decision that is likely: 

(i)      to result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are significant,           

         having regard to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which a decision relates. The Council has said that  

         Capital or Revenue spending over £100,000 will be a Key Decision; or 

(ii)     to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the 

         Borough; 

A private meeting is a meeting or part of a meeting of the Executive during which the public must be excluded whenever: 

a) it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the  public were present 

during that item, confidential information would be disclosed to them in breach of the obligation of confidence;  

b) the Executive passes a resolution to exclude the public during that item where it is likely, in view of the nature of the item of business, that if 

members of the public were present during that item, exempt information would be disclosed to them; or 

c) a lawful power is used to exclude a member or members of the public in order to maintain orderly conduct or prevent misbehaviour at a 

meeting. 

 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 7



Matter for 
decision 

Purpose Key 
Decision 
Yes or 
No 

Anticipated 
date 
of decision 

Public or Private report. If 
Private give reasons 

List of 
Documents to 
be submitted 
including any 
background 
papers 

Contact person & 
Executive Portfolio 

 

2 
 

 

Woodtop School 
and Land 
adjacent at Cog 
Lane 

To consider a 
report on 
Woodtop School  
and Land 
adjacent at Cog 
Lane 

Yes  March 2019 The report contains exempt 
information and is therefore 
NOT FOR PUBLICATION 
by virtue of Local 
Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A, Part I, 
Paragraph 3;Information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information 

Report setting 
out the key 
issues 

Lukman Patel 
Chief Operating Officer 
and 
Kate Ingram 
Strategic Head of 
Economy and Growth 
 
Executive Member for 
Housing and Leisure 

Yorkshire Street 
and Croft Street 
Lease 

To consider a 
report on a 
Yorkshire Street 
and Croft Street 
Lease 

Yes March 2019 The report contains exempt 
information and is therefore 
NOT FOR PUBLICATION 
by virtue of Local 
Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A, Part I, 
Paragraph 3;Information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information 

Report setting 
out the key 
issues 

Asad Mushtaq 
Head of Finance and 
Property 
 
Executive Member for 
Resources and 
Performance 
Management 

P
age 12



Matter for 
decision 

Purpose Key 
Decision 
Yes or 
No 

Anticipated 
date 
of decision 

Public or Private report. If 
Private give reasons 

List of 
Documents to 
be submitted 
including any 
background 
papers 

Contact person & 
Executive Portfolio 

 

3 
 

Town Hall 
Carpark 
/Footbridge & Car 
Park Off 
Hammerton Street 
adjacent to Lava 
Ignite 

To consider a 
Town Hall 
Carpark 
/Footbridge & 
Car Park Off 
Hammerton 
Street adjacent 
to Lava Ignite 

Yes March 2019 Public 
 

Report setting 
out the key 
issues 

Asad Mushtaq 
Head of Finance and 
Property 
 
Executive Member for 
Resources and 
Performance 
Management 

Disabled Facilities 
Grant Additional 
Funding 2918/19 

To consider a 
report on 
Disabled 
Facilities Grant 
Additional 
Funding 2918/19 

Yes March 2019 Information which is likely to 
reveal the identity of an 
individual. 
 

Report setting 
out the key 
issues 

Paul Gatrell Head of 
Housing and 
Development 
 
Executive Member for 
Housing and Leisure 

Padiham 
Townscape 
Heritage 
Exemplar Project 
 

To consider a 
report on 
Padiham 
Townscape 
Heritage 
Exemplar Project 
 

Yes March 2019 The report contains exempt 
information and is therefore 
NOT FOR PUBLICATION 
by virtue of Local 
Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A, Part I, 
Paragraph 3;Information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information 

Report setting 
out the key 
issues 

Kate Ingram, Strategic 
Head of Economy and 
Growth 
 
Executive Member for 
Economy and Growth 

P
age 13



Matter for 
decision 

Purpose Key 
Decision 
Yes or 
No 

Anticipated 
date 
of decision 

Public or Private report. If 
Private give reasons 

List of 
Documents to 
be submitted 
including any 
background 
papers 

Contact person & 
Executive Portfolio 

 

4 
 

Sale of Land at 
Princess Way, 
Burnley  
 

To consider a 
report on Sale of 
Land at Princess 
Way, Burnley  

 

No March 2019 The report contains exempt 
information and is therefore 
NOT FOR PUBLICATION 
by virtue of Local 
Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A, Part I, 
Paragraph 3;Information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information 

Report setting 
out the key 
issues 

Asad Mushtaq 
Head of Finance and 
Property 
 
Executive Member for 
Resources and 
Performance 
Management 

Meetings of the Executive will be held on the following dates: 20th March and 24th April 2019. Meetings normally start at 6.30pm but times can 

change so please check the council website nearer the date of the meeting. 

This Notice will be further updated by the following dates:  21st March, and 1st May 2019. 

A further Notice will be given 5 clear days before each meeting listed above if the meeting or part of the meeting is to be held in private. If you 

wish to make any representations about why any meeting or part of a meeting proposed to be held in private should be open to the public 

please send them to: Catherine Waudby, Head of Legal and Democratic Services ,Town Hall, Manchester Road, Burnley BB11 9SA. 

E-mail:  cwaudby@burnley.gov.uk                                                                                                                     Published:   19th February 2019  

P
age 14



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\5\5\AI00008558\$ablc2p0y.docx

RECYCLING COLLECTIONS

REPORT TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE 13th March 2019
PORTFOLIO Community & Environmental Services
REPORT AUTHOR Joanne Swift
TEL NO 01282 477301

EMAIL jswift@burnley.gov.uk

PURPOSE

1. To respond to the public petition that has been received, which requests that the Council 
considers the introduction of a change to bins for the collection of recyclate.

RECOMMENDATION

2. For Scrutiny Committee to note the following; 

3. The Council will be undertaking a review of its waste collection and recycling services.  
The review will include:

 
a. An analysis of the national waste strategy.

b. A review of current waste collection and recycling operations within Burnley.  Our 
overall objectives include; increasing recycling rates, making recycling easier for 
residents and improving street cleanliness.

c. Development of options for a tailored waste collection and recycling service, which 
meets the different needs of the different types of property within Burnley.

d. Recommended way forward for a tailored waste collection and recycling service for 
Burnley residents.

4. The planned review will address the matters raised within the recently received public 
petition.

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

5. The online petition ‘bins not bags / boxes for recycling’ has reached the threshold of 
signatures for the matter to be considered by the Council’s Scrutiny Committee.  This is in 
accordance with the Council’s Petition Scheme Policy, as outlined within the Council’s 
Constitution. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

6. At a recent Full Council Meeting held on the 20th February 2019, the Executive Member 
for Community and Environmental Services announced the planned action, as outlined 
above in paras 1 - 4.  

The National Waste Review:   

7. The planned waste review that is to be undertaken by the Council will take into account 
the operating environment that is being established since the publication of the 
Government’s long awaited Waste and Resources Strategy in December 2018.  The key 
themes of the national strategy are in the main;

 The Circular Economy and reform aim at manufacturers to reduce the supply and 
use of non-recyclable packaging

 Single Use Plastics (SUPs)
 Deposit Return Schemes
 Waste crime 
 Re-use and waste management
 Surplus food reduction and redistribution (primarily commercial activities and not 

resident)
   Improved technology and performance measurement to manage waste 

8. It is still too early at this point to report back in full on the wider implications of the national 
strategy for local waste delivery.  For instance, there are still areas of clarification 
required on the Strategy and the Government has indicated that there will be national 
consultation undertaken with Waste Disposal Authorities (WDA’s) and Waste Collection 
Authorities (WCA’s) like us during 2019.  

Current Waste and Cleansing Contract

9. The current waste and cleansing contract was awarded to Urbaser and commenced in 
June 2015 as an 8 year contract with the potential plus 1 year, plus 1 year extension(s).   
As we are approaching midway within the Contract, the planned work by the Council to 
review its waste collection and recycling services will be undertaken in accordance with 
the Council’s ongoing monitoring of the Contract to ensure Best Value and also in 
conjunction with the national waste strategy requirements.

Planned Waste Review and Timetable

10.The overall objectives of the planned Waste Review will be to look at the Council’s 
requirements in light of the recently published National Waste Strategy and to also 
identify how locally we can increase resident participation in recycling.  The planned work 
to be undertaken by the Council will look to determine how recycling can be made easier 
for local residents and how we can continue to maintain and deliver high standards of 
street cleanliness.  The review will start straight away and will be completed in time for 
the June 2019 Scrutiny Committee.  

Page 16



 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

11.The financial implications will be reported back to Scrutiny Committee at the June 2019 
meeting following the full review.  

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

12.National Waste Strategy.

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

13.  Executive Member for Community & Resources.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

14.  None

FURTHER INFORMATION      

PLEASE CONTACT: Sean Spencer, Environmental Services 
Manager, Streetscene

ALSO:      

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00008565\$szcddmpm.docx

ITEM NO

REPORT TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE 13th March 2019
PORTFOLIO Economy & Growth
REPORT AUTHOR Kath Hudson
TEL NO Ext: 7211

EMAIL khudson@burnley.gov.uk 

The State of the Local Economy

PURPOSE

1. To update members on the state of the local economy and business support activities 
provided by the Council

RECOMMENDATION

2. To note the contents of this report

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

To allow Members to discuss the current state of the local economy in Burnley.

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

3. A number of indicators are used below to indicate the state of the Burnley Economy.  It is 
by no means a comprehensive picture and the delays in releasing statistical information 
sometimes means that it is difficult to establish an up to date figure.

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00008565\$szcddmpm.docx

4 Number of employees in Burnley
It is important to note that the data contained in this section is based on a survey of 
businesses by the ONS and is not an actual count of employment numbers. 

According to the latest data released by ONS there were 38,000 employees across all 
industrial sectors in Burnley in 2017. This is 500 employees fewer than the previous year 
(2016) but 500 more than the year prior to that (2015). Over the 2 year period, 2015-2017, 
total employment in Burnley has increased by 1.3%.  This is a lower rate of growth than 
comparator areas and previous years.

Change in Employee numbers
Growth rate 2016-2017

1 year growth
Growth rate 2015-2017

2 year growth
(%) Growth (%) Growth

Burnley -1.3% 1.3%

Lancashire LEP area -0.2% 1.3%
Gtr Manchester LEP 2.8% 6.5%
North West 1.4% 4.1%
Great Britain 1.2% 2.8%

Table 1
Source: ONS, Business Register & Employment Survey 2017. Note: data is available from 2009 however 
due to a change in the data collection methodology in 2015, comparisons are only meaningful with years 
2015 onwards.

4.1 Sectors
The 4 biggest employment sectors within Burnley are Health (18.4% of total employment), 
Manufacturing (18.4%), Retail (13.2%) and Education (7.9%).

Previously observed trends showed that the proportion of people working in the 
Manufacturing sector in Burnley, as a percentage of overall employment in the town, has 
been slowly decreasing over the previous 7 years, from 18.6% of all employment in 2009 
to 15.6% in 2016. According to the latest data (year 2017) this percentage has risen back 
to almost the 2009 figure due to a sharp increase in the number of manufacturing jobs in 
Burnley in 16/17.

4.2 Public and Private Sector Job Growth

4.3 Private Sector Jobs 
The private sector accounts for 81.4% of total employment in Burnley. In the period 2015-
2017, employment in the private sector in Burnley grew by 2.5%. Again, this is a similar 
rate of private sector growth to Lancashire.

Change in Employee numbers
Growth rate 2016-2017

1 year growth
Growth rate 2015-2017

2 year growth
(%) Growth (%) Growth

Burnley -0.5% 2.5%

Lancashire LEP area 0.3% 2.3%
Gtr Manchester LEP 3.1% 7.3%
North West 1.5% 4.8%

Page 20



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00008565\$szcddmpm.docx

Great Britain 1.3% 3.3%
Table 2 - Source: ONS, Business Register & Employment Survey 2017

4.4 Public Sector Jobs

Although public sector jobs smaller a smaller proportion of the economy, it accounts for 
nearly 20% of all jobs in Burnley.  It can be seem from the table below, that Burnley and 
Lancashire have incurred higher rates of public sector job losses compared to Greater 
Manchester, the North West and Great Britain.

Public Sector Jobs
Change in Employee numbers

Growth rate 2016-2017
1 year growth

Growth rate 2015-2017
2 year growth

(%) Growth (%) Growth
Burnley -2.1% -2.3%

Lancashire LEP area -2.0% -3.0%
Gtr Manchester LEP 1.9% 2.9%
North West 0.7% 0.8%
Great Britain 0.4% 0.5%

5 Weekly Pay
According to the latest data average weekly resident based pay in Burnley (ie people who 
live in the borough but who may work elsewhere) was £483.10 in 2018. 

Whilst average weekly workplace based pay (i.e. people who work in the borough but do 
not necessarily live in the borough) was £452.20. 

That resident based pay is higher than workplace based pay means that Burnley residents 
benefit from commuting out of the borough to earn higher wages.

Both resident based pay and workplace based pay were lower than the Lancashire, North 
West and Great Britain average in 2018.

Resident pay Workplace pay
Burnley £483.10 £452.20
Lancashire LEP £517.80 £514.20
North West £529.60 £529.60
Great Britain £571.10 £570.90

Table 3 Source: ONS ASHE

6 Number of businesses in Burnley
6.1 According to the latest data (year 2017) there were 2,865 active business enterprises in 

Burnley.This is 60 more than last year. The number of new businesses created in Burnley 
in 2017 (business births) was 305. The number of business failures (deaths) was 355. 
The fact that the number of business closures outweighs the number of new businesses, 
yet there was a net increase in the number of active businesses suggests that there was 
more migration of existing businesses into Burnley than there was out.
(Source: ONS Business Demography 2016)

7 Employment 

Page 21



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00008565\$szcddmpm.docx

This data is survey based. Therefore the smaller the geographic area, the smaller the 
sample size, the less accurate and reliable the data is likely to be. This data should be 
treated with a large degree of caution. 

7.1 All people economically active in employment

For the period July 2017-June 2018 the number of economically active people in Burnley, 
in employment was 42,500 or 75.7% of the working age population.

This is lower than the previous corresponding 12 month period, July 2016-June 2017, 
when the number of economically active people in employment was 45,200 or 80.7% of 
the working age population. This is higher than the North West or Great Britain. This is 
also the second highest rate of employment since this particular dataset began in 2004.

As a reminder:- the data at Burnley level should be treated with caution, although these 
are official statistics they are not a reliable measure of employment at the local level due 
to the high margin of error in the figures. The black vertical lines on Burnley’s time series 
represent the margins of error in the data of 6.9%. This means that the figures could be 
plus or minus 6.9% of the given figure. Even so it is positive to note that even at their 
lowest potential value, employment in Burnley appears to remains close to the regional 
and national rates, albeit slightly below. See Graph 1.

Ju
l 0

6-
Ju

n 
07

Ju
l 0

7-
Ju

n 
08

Ju
l 0

8-
Ju

n 
09

Ju
l 0

9-
Ju

n 
10

Ju
l 1

0-
Ju

n 
11

Ju
l 1

1-
Ju

n 
12

Ju
l 1

2-
Ju

n 
13

Ju
l 1

3-
Ju

n 
14

Ju
l 1

4-
Ju

n 
15

Ju
l 1

5-
Ju

n 
16

Ju
l 1

6-
Ju

n 
17

Ju
l 1

7-
Ju

n 
18

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

Burnley
North West
Great Britain
Linear (Burnley)

All people - economically active - in employment 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 p
eo

pl
e 

(%
)

Graph 7:  Source: Nomis, Local Authority Profile. ONS annual population survey
Note:  numbers are for those aged 16 and over, % are for those aged 16-64

8 Support for Businesses

8.1 Business Growth Programme

Page 22



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00008565\$szcddmpm.docx

The Council’s Business Growth Programme has been in operation since 2013. The 
programme compliments other Business Support Programmes being delivered in Burnley 
by other agencies.  The specific types of support provided by the BGP is shown below:-  

1. Grants - supporting capital expenditure, (grants are limited with a focus now on 
directing businesses to the loan option)

2. Specialist Business Advice – bespoke consultancy support tailored to meet 
individual company needs.

3. Discretionary Business Rate Relief – this strand has proven extremely beneficial to 
some companies and has provided a better value for money option than a grant in 
some cases.

4. Business Loans
5. Support for town centre businesses bringing vacant premises back into use
6. Start-up support - for those start-ups failing to meet the criteria for BOOST 

Lancashire 

Support Provision No of Companies Having Received 
Support

Grants 26
Specialist Business Advice 17
Discretionary Rate Relief 28
Business Loans Agreed 1
Support for Town Centres 10
Start-Up & Mentoring Support 19

Outcomes against the original targets

Target

(3year original figures)

Outcomes To Date

(2013 –February 2019)
75 Businesses Support 141

250 Jobs Created 1,598
75 Jobs Safeguarded 558.5

4 Inward Investment Projects 41
10 Relocation/business growth projects 45
£5m Private Sector Investment Levered £115,844,397



8.4 Burnley Business Week

The seventh successive year of Burnley Business Week was held from the 14th to the 18th 
Page 23



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00008565\$szcddmpm.docx

May 2018 and was another great success. It attracted over 500 bookings, a 33%

increase on last year. In total, 28 events were held containing a mixture of workshops and 
seminars, covering topics such as start-your-own-business, business networking  
Leadership and Health & Wellbeing in the workplace. The most popular events were those 
on topical subjects such as GDPR and Social Media.  Many of the workshops and events 
were sponsored and delivered by local businesses enabling the Council to deliver a free of 
charge event.

Feedback from those that attended was overwhelmingly positive, some highlights are 
below: 

 Great presenter. Very knowledgeable. Great real life examples.
 Thank you it made me more aware about how to start a business. Now I'm more 

optimistic.
 It surpassed my expectations - a free event which featured some brilliant 

speakers. Well done; 
 It was a great week. I took part in several sessions and found all very useful. I 

can't believe these sessions are offered free to businesses
 I think the concept of the Business Week is brilliant, some colleagues from the 

business also attended events this year. Please keep it going!!

9 Vision Park 

The Vision Park development has now completed its first year of operation with handover 
in late January of last year.  The site has generated significant interest with several 
viewings per month taking place since the site was completed.  Currently the occupancy 
level on the whole site is 65%.  The site has a mix of new start and established 
businesses from a range of target sectors with two existing tenants already expanding 
within the centre to take additional space to accommodate their growth.  

The current tenants include:

Blackburn Distributions - manufacture of health and performance supplements
Protool Precision Engineering - manufacture of aerospace components
Gym Upholstery UK - textile services refurbishing gym equipment
Glitter Planet Ltd - manufacture and supply of beauty products
Burnley College - warehouse/logistics and advanced manufacturing training academy
Bates Box Power - manufacture of power distribution equipment
GF2GO Ltd - manufacture of gluten free foods
FloControl - design, assembly and installation of commercial water flow systems
Production Print Direct Ltd - supply and service of commercial printing equipment

At present the site accommodates 52.5 employees.

10 Town Centre Management and Support

Support for town centre businesses – Burnley & Padiham

6 businesses have received financial support amounting to over £2,600.  This resulted in 3 
empty shop premises being brought back into use and 3 shopfront improvements for 
existing businesses.  As a result of the support the businesses have invested over 

Page 24



D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00008565\$szcddmpm.docx

£160,000 in the town centres, have created 8 jobs, and safeguarded 1 job.

Business Improvement District – Burnley town centre

Following completion of a Feasibility Study which recommended proceeding with the 
development of a Business Improvement District (BID) for Burnley town centre, 
consultants Groundwork, Cheshire, Lancashire & Merseyside, have been appointed to 
lead the development of a BID prospectus to enable a ballot of businesses in October and 
November.  Based on the BID prospectus businesses decide whether or not they should 
pay an additional levy on business rates to support additional town centre activities. 
Should there be a positive ballot a BID overseen by an independent, business led BID 
Board would be established in early 2020.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

11 None.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

12  None.

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

13 Strategic Head of Economy & Growth – Kate Ingram
Executive Member for Economy & Growth – Asif Raja

BACKGROUND PAPERS

14 None.

FURTHER INFORMATION      
PLEASE CONTACT:      
ALSO:      

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Review Group – Dementia Services

REPORT TO EXECUTIVE

DATE 20/03/2019
PORTFOLIO None

REPORT AUTHOR Scrutiny Review Group – Dementia 
Services

TEL NO
EMAIL atatchell@burnley.gov.uk

PURPOSE

1. To update the Executive on the work of the Scrutiny Working Group which has been 
investigating whether there were any additional practical ways in which  Burnley Council 
can support provision of Dementia Services in Burnley.

RECOMMENDATION

2. That the Council continues to support the roll out of the Herbert Protocol through the 
Policy & Engagement Team, developing further opportunities for partnership working to 
maximise take up across the Borough.  

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3. The Herbert Protocol is a risk reduction tool to be used in the search for a missing person 
– a large number of whom are people living with dementia.  The document is used by 
search teams to pinpoint likely areas for investigation, and maximise the chances of 
finding the missing person quickly and alive.

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS

4. The Scrutiny Review Group was formed with the remit of looking at the range of services 
available for Dementia patients in the Burnley area.  It quickly became apparent that the 
scope was very broad, and the group focussed on the ‘Herbert Protocol’ after a 
presentation from the Alzheimer’s Society.

5. There are currently over 1200 people living with a diagnosis of Alzheimer’s or dementia 
related illness in Burnley.

6. Inspector Duncan Arthur gave a detailed briefing on the Herbert Protocol to Review 
Group Members.  He outlined its usefulness in a search, and how the information is used 
to highlight likely search areas, thus reducing the search time and increasing the 
likelihood of a positive outcome.

7. The form requests information such as personal details, appearance, location of family 
and friends, favourite places, address history, access to modes of transport and other 
information to assist in assessing where they may have travelled to.  A copy is attached 
at Appendix 1.

8. Family/carers complete the Herbert Protocol form, and then keep the form until required, 
when it is passed to the Police, and handed back at the conclusion of the search.  This 

Page 27

Agenda Item 10



means that there are no additional data protection implications.
9. The Council already promotes Dementia Friendly Burnley – all staff have been offered 

Dementia Friends training, the Council provides support to the Burnley Dementia Action 
Alliance, promotion of events and activities (including the Herbert Protocol) via Colleague 
Conferences and the intranet.  The recent renovation works at Thompson Park included 
Dementia Friendly refurbishment of the café area.  

10.The Police Communications Team may be able to supply posters which could be 
displayed in Council noticeboards and shared with Partners.  The Police would also be 
happy to consider joint communications with the Council to be shared with local press 
organisations to support the publicity campaign.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION

11.None

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

12.This supports the Council’s priority on creating flourishing, healthy and confident 
communities.

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

13.As set out in the report

BACKGROUND PAPERS

14.None

FURTHER INFORMATION      
PLEASE CONTACT:       Alison McEwan x 7259
ALSO:      

Page 28



 

 

 

Adult at risk profile 
 

 

The purpose of this questionnaire is to record pertinent information about the person 

you care for – this will be used by the police and search teams in the event that the 

person goes missing. Once completed please keep this questionnaire in a safe place 

and produce to the police in the event of an emergency. This vital information will help 

the search teams to gather all the relevant information and begin searching. Recording 

this information ahead of time and keeping it regularly updated will greatly reduce 

stress associated with trying to recall detailed information in an emergency situation. 

If possible, please also attach a clear and recent head and shoulders photograph to 

this form.  

If the person you care for goes missing, without delay ring 999, complete as 

best you can the “Missing Now ” section and hand to police when they attend 

your location. 

 

Background 
 

 

First name 

 
 

Last /Family Name  Maiden Name 

 
 

  

Known as / Nickname First Spoken Language 

 
 

  

Mobile phone number and service provider (eg EE, Vodafone) 

 
 

Do they have a GPS Tracker or Dementia Buddy tag? /if yes give details. 

 
 

Current address 

Living here since 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Please attached a recent 

photo here. 

Please find one that is up 

to date and a good 

likeness of the person. 

Page 29



Physical Description 
 

 

Date of Birth / Age  Gender  Build 
 
 

    

Race / Ethnicity / Complexion  Height  Weight 
 
 

    

Marks / Scars / Tattoos  Hair colour / cut  Eye colour / glasses 
 
 

    

Hairpiece / Wig  Other distinctive feature (e.g. facial hair) 
   

 

Medical History 
 

 

Medical conditions and date of diagnosis (if known) 
 
 
 
 
Memory – Please give details of memory problems and diagnosis (eg Dementia/Alzheimers) 

 
 

 

Communication difficulties  Physical impairments 
 
 

  

 

Vital medication  Frequency  Symptoms if missed 
 
 

    

     
     
     
     
 
GP’s name, address and telephone number 
 
 
 
 
Information for searchers (e.g. scared of being touched, things that make me anxious, scared of dogs, etc.) 
 
 
 
 
 Page 30



Life History (use ‘Additional information’ space at the end if required) 
 

 

All Occupation/Hobbies/Passions/Interests/Volunteer work 
 
 
 
 
All Favourite place(s) to spend time 
 
 
 
Typical modes of travel (Bus/Train/Car/Mobility Scooter etc)  
 
 
 
All Favourite / likely destination(s) / Favourite holiday spots 
 
 
 
All Favourite footpath / track 
 
 
 
Family or friends living nearby 
 
 
Any regular / weekly routines? 
 
 
Question 

  
Answer 

How easily can the person walk? 
 

  

 

If walking, how far can they get before 
becoming tired? 

  

 

Do they use a stick or other walking 
aid? 

  

 

How might they react to being upset or 
scared? 

  

 

Are they able to drive? 
 

  

 

Do they have a car? 
 

  

 

Church/Mosque/Synagogue/Temple? 
 

  

 

Houses/friends who they visit? 
 

  

   

Do they have bank cards or access to 
money? 

  

Page 31



Life History (continued) 

 

All Previous addresses  Approximate dates 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 

  

 
All work history name and address( please use extra pages if necessary)   Approximate dates 
 
 
 
 

  

School names and addresses          Approximate dates 

   
 

If missing previously, where found? 
 
 
 

 

Circumstances: How found / how far / time missing 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Additional information 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 32



Carer/Family Information 

 

Your name  Relationship to person reported 
missing 

 
 

  

Address 
 
 
Home phone number  Mobile phone number 
 
 

  

Alternative contacts (guardian/social worker) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Missing now 

 

Time last seen  Place last seen  Medication last taken 
 
 

    

Clothing 
 
 
 
Car details/carrying anything/have cash or bank cards 
 
 
 
 
Situation/recent discussion/recent notable date/contact with friends or family 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Any other information 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Work Programme 2019/20

Wednesday 26th June 
2019 Notice of Key Decisions and Private Meetings

Recycling Collection review update
Report/presentation from Liberata 
Outturn budget reports 2018/19
Treasury Management 2018/19 – review of activity
Year-end  performance report 2018/19
Aspiration Strategy Update
Review Groups
Work Plan

Monday 16th 
September 2019 Notice of Key Decisions and Private Meetings

Leisure Trust Annual Report
Revenue Budget Monitoring Q1
Capital Budget Monitoring  - Q1
Revenue Budgets 2020/23 – Latest Position and Savings Proposals
Review Groups
Work Plan

Monday 2nd 
December 2019  
Budget Scrutiny 
Panel

NKDPM
Revenue Budget Monitoring Q2
Capital Budget Monitoring  - Q2
Fees & Charges
Treasury Management Mid-year update
Food Delivery Plan (annual update)
Health & Safety Delivery Plan (annual update)
Half Year performance report 
Community Safety Annual Report 
Review Groups
Work Plan

Thursday 6th February 
2020
Budget Scrutiny 
Panel

NKDPM
Revenue Budget Monitoring Q3
Capital Budget Monitoring  - Q3
Revenue Budget 2020/21
Capital Budget 2020/21 and Cap Investment Prog 20/21 – 24/25
Treasury Management & Prudential Borrowing.
Draft Strategic Plan  
Review Groups
Work Plan 

11th March 2020 Notice of Key Decisions and Private Meetings
State of the Local Economy (reduced to annual reporting) 
Resident Satisfaction Survey 
Review Groups
Work Plan 2020/21

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Notice of Key Decisions and Private Meetings
	8 Recycling Collections
	9 State of the Local Economy
	10 Scrutiny Review Groups
	pdf Scrutiny Review Dementia Services Appendix 1

	11 Work Programme 2019/20

